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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the City Commission;
City of Dunnellon, Florida

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City
of Dunnelion, Florida, (the City) as of and for the year ended September 30, 2013, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements
as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial staterments
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
inciudes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disciosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control refevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major



fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Dunnellon, Florida, as of
September 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where

applicable, for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.

Other Matiers
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’'s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial staternents, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

QOther Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Dunnellon, Florida's basic financial statements. The schedule of
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by the Department of Financial Services’ State Projects Compliance
Supplement, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements,

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance is the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relate directly to the underiying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statemenis or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 18,
2014, on our consideration of the City of Dunnelion, Florida’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards



in considering the City of Dunnelion, Florida’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

POWELL & JONES

Certified Public Accountants
Lake City, Florida

April 18, 2014



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Dunnellon’s financial performance provides an overview of
the City’s financial activities for the year ended September 30, 2013. Please read it in conjunction with
the City’s basic financial statements, which begin on page 14.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities (on pages 14-15) provide information about the activities of the City as a whole
and present a longer-term view of the City’s finances. Fund financial statements start on page 16. For
governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as
well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the City's operations
in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the City's most
significant funds. The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which
the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the government.

Reporting the City as a Whole
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

Our analysis of the City as a whole begins on page 14. One of the most important questions asked
about the City's finances is, “Is the City as a whole financially better or worse as a result of the year's
activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information about the
City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements
include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the
accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses
are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City's Net Position and changes in them. You can think of the City's
Net Position-the difference between assets and liabilities-as one way to measure the City’s financial
health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's Net Position are one
indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other
non-financial factors, such as changes in the City’s property tax base and the condition of the City's
roads, to assess the overall health of the City.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two types of
activities:

¢ Governmental activities-Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including the police,

fire, general administration, streets and parks, property taxes, franchise fees, gas taxes, fines,
and state and county-shared revenues.

* Business-type activities-The City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the
cost of certain services it provides. The City's water, sewer, and communications systems are
reported here,



Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

Our anailysis of the City’s major funds begins on page 16. The fund financial statements provide
detailed information about the General Fund and Enterprise Funds-not the City as a whole. Some funds
are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However, the City Council
establishes other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes. The City’s two
types of funds-governmental and proprietary (business-type)-use different accounting approaches.

* Governmental funds-Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds which
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that
are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called
modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and ail other financial assets that can
readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term
view of the City's general government operations and the basic services it provides.
Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City’'s programs. We describe the
relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net

Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in reconciliations on pages
17 and 19.

¢ Proprietary funds-The City's proprietary funds are comprised of enterprise funds. An enterprise
fund is used to account for activities when the City charges customers for the services it
provides. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the City's enterprise fund is
the same as the business-type activities we report in the government-wide statements but
provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows.

The Clty as Trustee
Reporting the City's Fiduciary Responsibilities

The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for the Special Risk Pension Trust Fund. The City's fiduciary
activities are reported in a separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Position Pension Trust Fund on page
25. The Fiduciary Fund Financial Statement is not presented as part of the Government-wide Financial
Statements because the resources of these funds are not available to support the City's programs.
Fiduciary (Trust and Agency) Funds represent trust responsibilities of the government. However, these
assets are restricted in purpose and do not represent discretionary assets of the government.

THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Governmental Business-Type Total
2012 2013 2012 2043 2012 2013
Revenues $3,136,223 $3,108,363 $6,558,727 $ 8423812 $9,694,950 $ 11,532,175
Expenses $3,292,013 $3,762,419 $5,556,984 $ 13,655,623 $8,848,997 $ 17,418,042

To aid in the understanding of the Statement of Activities some additional explanation is given.
Expenses are listed in the first column with revenues from that particular program reported to the right.



The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenue. The reason for this kind of format is to highlight the relative
financial burden of each of the functions on the City's taxpayers. It also identifies how much each
function draws from the general revenues or if it is self-financing through fees and grants. Some of the
individual line item revenues reported for each function are:

General Government Building permits, occupational licenses, and plumbing/electric
inspections
Public Safety Fire inspections, accident responses, police fines for traffic and parking

violations, Department of Justice grants

Physical Environment Grave opening and closing, burial lot purchases, sanitation activities-
trash removal

Transportation Gasoline Tax
Culture and Recreation City beach user fees

All other governmental revenues are reported as general. It is important to note that all taxes are
classified as general revenue even if restricted for a specific purpose.

Governmental Activities
Total Governmental revenues decreased less than 1 percent.

Business-type Activities

The Water, Sewer and Communications Utilities show a combined operating loss of $2,779,446,
combined non-operating revenues of $5,268,790, combined interest expense of $1,330,838, and an
impairment loss of $6,390,317, for a net decrease of $5,231,811 for fiscal year 2013. The net
decrease is primatily due to recording the writedown of assets in the communications fund.

Met Position

For the years ended September 30, 2013 and 2012, Net Position changed as follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013
Beginning net position . % 7542595 $ 7,386,805 $ 12,406,880 $ 13,408,623 $  19,949475 $ 20,795428
Increase {decrease) in net position {155,790) {654,056) 1,001,743 (5,2341,811) 845953 {5,885,867)

$ 7,386,805 $ 6,732,749 $ 13,408,623 $ 8,176,812 $ 20,795428 $ 14,309,561

This reflects a decrease of 9 percent for governmental activities and a 39 percent increase for
business-type activities over prior year.



THE CITY'S FUNDS

The following schedule of Assets and Liabilities presents a summary of the City’s Assets and Liabilities
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 and 2012,

Assets
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
2012 2013 2012 2013

Current Assets $ 3,064,914 $ 2489791 % 3,103,702 $ 4,307.124
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated

Depreciation 4,640,359 4,555,393 33,992,080 26,565,640
Unamortized Bond Issue Costs - - 224 282 182,530
Total Assets $ 7.705273 $ 7045184 $ 37,320,064 $ 31,055,294

Capital assets for governmental activities have decreased 2 percent over the prior year. Business-type
activities reflect a decrease of 22 percent primarily due to an impairment loss recorded in writing down
the assets of the communications fund.

Liabilities
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
2012 2013 2012 2013
Current Liabilities $ 230,761 $ 219,946 $ 4,130,463 $ 3,623,882
Payable from Restricted Assets - - 336,131 373,948
Deferred Revenue 25,654 24,779 - -
Long-term Liabilities 62.053 67,710 20,923,276 18,880,652
Total Liabilities $ 318468 $ 312435 _$25389870 $ 22878482

Current liabilities for governmental activities decreased 5% over the prior year primarily due to less
accounts payable in the current year. Long-term liabilities increased 9% primarily due to compensated

absences. Current liabilities for business-type activities have increased 12% from prior year, primarily
due to debt payments.

The following schedule presents a summary of general, special revenue, capital proiect, debt service,
and enterprise fund revenues and expenses for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 and 2012,
Business-Type

Governmental Water Utility Sewer Utility Communications Utility
2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013

Program Revenues

Charges for Services $ 728,072 $ 844,795 % 923,336 $ 1,069,834 $ 1,386,470 $ 1,516,021 $52,609 $ 544,298
Operating Grants and

Contributions 43694 22,174
Capital Grants and
Contributions 32,500 15,956 780,820 - 3,097,322 4,471,905

General Revenues

Taxes 2,066,079 2,003,520

State-shared 185,950 182,170 - - - - -

fnvestiment income 9,912 3,839 5,065 1,992 6,364 2,261 29

Miscellanecus 70,016 28,909 3,078 5,861 138 434 3,498 1,574

Transfers in 792,629

$3,136,223 $3,108 363 $1,712.297 $ 1,077,687 $ 4,490,294 $ 5990621 $56,136 $1,338,501

10



Governmental revenue decreased 1 percent over prior year. Charges for Services increased 16
percent. Taxes decreased 3 percent. State-shared Revenue increased 2 percent. Business-type
revenues increased 32 percent primarily due to the Rainbow Springs and Juliette Falls utility systems
contributing a full year's revenue and an increase in Communications Fund revenue.

Expenses
Governmental Water Utility Sewer Utility Communication Utifity
2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013

$ 2,992,013 $ 3,762,419 $1,320,369 $ 1544736 $ 2,260,122 $ 2,613,388 $ 1,976,493 $ 9,499,501

Expenses increased in the governmental fund and combined utility funds by 96 percent for the year
ended September 30, 2013 primarily due to depreciation expense, and the impairment loss recorded
in the communications fund.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS
Total revenue for the year shows 5 percent under budget.
On the expense-side, total General Government is under budget 20 percent or $139,785. This is

primarily associated with the Comprehensive Planning Department delaying capital projects and

lowering operating expenses. Total Public Safety is under budget 8 percent primarily due to position
vacancies.

CAPITAL ASSETS

As of September 30, 2043, the City had $31 million invested in capital assets including police and fire
equipment, buildings, park facilities, roads, and water and sewer lines. (See table below) This
represents a net decrease of $7,514,407 or 19 percent, over the prior year.

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2643

Capital Assets $7,274,693 $7.361.361 $ 33,472,566 $ 33,635,055 $ 40,747,259 $ 40,896,416
Construction in Progress - - 5866615 110,329 5,866,615 110,329
Less Accurnulated

Depreciation (2,634,334) {2,805,968) (5,347,101) (7,079,344) {7,981,435} {9,885,312)
Total $4,640,359 $4,555,393 $ 33,992,080 $ 26,566,040 $ 38,632,439 $ 31,1214, 433

This year's major addition was the completion of Phases Il and IV of the waste water expansion
project. The decrease was due to writing down the value of the Communications Fund assets to the
et realizable values.

it



CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a
general overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives.

if you have questions about this report or need additional financial information contact the Finance
Office at 20750 River Drive, Dunnellfon, Florida.

Eddia Eich

Eddie Esch
City Manager

Jan Snul%

Jan Smith
Finance Officer

12



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2043

Assets
Cash and investments
Receivables, net
Due from other governments
Inventory
Other assets
Restricted cash
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation
Unamortized bond issuance costs
Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Payable from restricted assets:
Utility deposits
Accrued interest
Deferred revenue
Long-term liabilities:
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Total liabilities

Net position
Invested in capital assets,
Net of related debt
Restricted for:
Debt service
Capital projects
Infrastruciure
Roads and streets
Pubtlic safety
Cemetery perpetual care
Tree fund
Emergency reserve
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total net position

See notes to financial statements.

Business-
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total

$ 2,337,629 197,304 2,534,933
63,162 227 461 290,623
88,900 5,543 94,443

. 119,688 119,688

100 - 100

- 3,757,128 3,757,428

3,210,074 385,164 3,595,235
4,151,290 33,260,220 37,411,510
(2,805,968) (7,079,744) {9,885,712)

- 182,530 182,530

7,045,184 31,055,294 38,100,478
135,243 725,172 860,415

- 134,336 134,336

- 239612 239612

24779 - 24779
84,703 2,898,710 2,983,413
67,710 18,880,652 12,948,362
312,435 22,878,482 23,180,917
4,565,393 4,988,333 9,643,726

- 1,238,245 1,238,245

624,343 4,979,381 5,603,724
56,247 - 56,247
1,569,224 . 1,569,224
49,767 - 49,767
43,452 - 43,452

73 - 73

157 - 157
{165,907 (3,029,147) (3,195,054

$ 6,732,749 8,176,812 14,909,561

14
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Assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Other assets

Total assets
Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts payabie
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances
Restricted
Committed for:
Roads and streets
Public safety
Infrastructure
Cemetery perpetual care
Tree fund
Emergency reserve
Assigned for:
Capital improvements
Unassigned (deficit)

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

See notes to financial statements.

CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
September 30, 2013

Tax
increment

Financing Total
General District Governmental

Fund Fund funds
$ 2,297,588 $ 40,031 $ 2,337,629
63,162 - 63,162
88,900 - 88,900
- 47,360 47,360
100 - 100
$ 2,449,780 $ 87,391 $ 2,537,151
$ 82,230 $ 34 % 82,964
49,864 2,415 52,279
47,360 - 47,360
24,779 - 24779
204 933 2,449 207,382
- 84,942 84,942
1,569,224 - 1,569,224
49767 - 49,767
58,247 - 56,247
43,452 - 43,452
73 - 73
157 - 157
624,343 - 624,343
(98,436) - (98,438)
2,244,827 84,942 2,329769
$ 2449760 $ 87,391 $ 2,537,151
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2013

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 2,329,769

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net
Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmentai activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. The
cost of the assets is $7,361,361 and the accumulated
depreciation is $2,805,968. 4,555,393

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current
period, and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities.
interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental
funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due.
Ali fiabilities, both current and iongderm, are reporied in the
statement of net position. Long-term liabilities at year end

consist of:
OPEE payable {22,100}
Compensated absences {130,313
Total net position of governmental activities $ 6,732,749

See notes to financial statements. 17



CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

Tax
Increment
Financing Total
General District Governmental
Fund Fund Funds
Revenues
Taxes $ 1,885,543 $ 117,977 $ 2,003,520
Licenses and permits 164,831 “ 164,831
Intergovernmental revenues 211344 - 211,344
Charges for service 202,378 - 202,378
Fines and forfeitures 450,188 - 450,188
Miscellaneous revenue 59,791 355 60,146
Total revenues 2,974,075 118,332 3,092,407
Expenditures
Current:
General government 547,857 182,346 730,203
Public safety 1.267,497 - 1,267,497
Physical environment 175,646 - 175,646
Transportation 510,001 - 510,001
Human services 33,655 - 33,655
Culture and recreation 67,801 - 67,801
Capital outlay
General government - 35,356 35,356
Public safety 15,956 - 15,956
Transportation 35,356 - 35,356
Debt service:
Principal payments 8,808 - 8,808
interest 348 - 348
Total expenditures 2,662,925 217,702 2,880,627
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 311,150 (992,370) 211,780
Other financing sources (uses)
Capital contributions 15,956 - 15,956
Interfund transfers out (792,629) - {792,629)
{(776,673) - {(776,673)
MNet change in fund balances (465,523) (98,370) {564,893)
Fund balances, beginning of year 2,710,350 184,312 2,894,662
Fund balances, end of year $ 2,244,827 $ 84,942 $ 2,329,769

See notes to financial statements, 18



CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (564,893)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement
of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital purchases as expenditures.
However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets
is depreciated over their estimated useful lives and reporied as
depreciation expense:

Net expenditures for capital assets $ 86,668
(Current year depreciation) {171,634) {84,966)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resource
to governmental funds and thus contribute to the change in fund
balance. In the statement of net assets, however, issuing debt
increases long-term liabilities and does not affect the statement
of activities. Similarly, repayment of principal is an expenditure
in the governmental funds, but reduces the liability in the statement
of net assets. The amounts of the items that make up these
differences in treatment of long-term debt items are:

Principal repayments:
Capital leases 8,808

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities such as
compensated absences do not require the use of current financial
resources and are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

increase in OPEB payabie (1,700
Net increase in compensated absences {11,305)
Change in net position of governmental activities $ (654,056)

See notes o the financial statements. 19



CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Assets
Current assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable (net of allowance
for uncoliectible accounts)
Due from other governments
inventory
Total current assets

Restricted assets
Cash:

Utifity deposit cash
Sewer capital improvement funds
Revenue bond proceeds
Debt service - state revolving loan
Debt service - revenue bonds

Total restricted assets

Utility plant in service
Cost of capital assets
(accumulated depreciation)
Construction in progress
Total utility plant in setvice -
cost less depreciation

Long-term assets
Bond issuance costs
{net of amortization)

Total assets

See notes fo financial stateiments.

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

September 30, 2013

Business-Type Activities

Water Sewer Communications
Fund Fund Fund Total
$ - 197,304 - 197,304
62,053 123,576 41,832 227,461
- 5,543 - 5,543
- - 119,688 119,688
62,053 326,423 161,520 549,996
134,336 - - 134,336
- 1,832 - 1,832
1,513,743 868,972 - 2,382,718
- 47,964 - 47,964
320,886 361,426 507,969 1,190,281
1,968,965 1,280,194 507,969 3,757,128
6,042,141 25,556,906 1,936,008 33,535,055
{1,588,761) (4,735,286) (755,697) {7,079,744)
62,005 48,324 - 140,329
4,515,385 20,869,844 1,180,311 26,565,640
49,847 49,487 83,196 182,530
49,847 49,487 83,196 182,630
$ 6,596,250 22526048 $ 1,932,996 $ 31,055,294
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 2013

Business-Type Activities

Water Sewer Communications
Fund Fund Fund Totai
Liabifities and Net Position
Cuyrent liabilities, unrestricted
Payable from current assets:
Agcounts, wages and
retainage payabie $ 165,366 % 446,858 $ 112,948 $ 725,172
Compensated absences -
due within one year 32,083 43,3186 26,127 101,526
Total current liabilities, unrestricted 197,449 490,174 139,075 826,698
Current labilities, restricted
Payable from restricted assets:
Accrued revenue bond and
SRF loan interest 74,249 88,989 76,374 239,612
Customer deposits 134,336 - - 134,336
SRF loan payable within one year - 6,682 - 6,682
Revenue bonds payable -
due within one year 228,721 245431 2,007,287 2,481 438
Capital lease payable-
due within one year - - 309,063 309,063
Total current liabilities, restricted 437,306 341,102 2,392,724 3,171,132
Total current liabilities 634,755 831,276 2,631,799 3,997,830
Long-term liabiiities
SRF loan payable - noncurrent portion . 34,254 - 34,254
Revenue bonds - noncurrent portion 6,350,548 7,087,405 4,743,838 18,181,788
Capital leases - noncurrent portion - - 564,081 564,081
QPEB payable 3,740 3,740 4,420 11,900
Compensated absences -
noncurrent portion 37,662 36,899 14,068 88,629
Total long-term liabilities 6,391,947 7,162,298 5,326,407 18,880,652
Total liabiiities 7,026,702 7,993,574 7,858,206 22,878,482
Net Position
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt {2,063,881) 13,496,472 (6,443,958) 4,988,333
Restricted for debt service 320,886 409,390 507,969 1,238,245
Restricted for bond financed capital projects 3,070,866 1,908,518 - 4,979,381
Unrestricted (deficit) (14,758,323) (1,281,603} 10,779 (3,029,147
Totat net position {deficit) (430,452) 14,532,474 (5,925,210) 8,176,812
Total lfabllities and net position $ 6,596,250 $ 22,526,048 $ 1,932,996 $ 31,055,294

See notes fo financial statements. 21



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2043

Operating revenues
Charges for services
Miscellaneous revenue

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses
Personnel services
Operating expenses
Professional services
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses

Operating loss

Nonoperating revenues
{expenses)
Interest income
Interest expense
Interfund transfers in
Interfund transfers out
Grant revenue
impairment loss on assets
Total nonoperating revenues
{expenses)

Net income (loss)

Net position, beginning
of year

Net position, end of year

See notes to financial statements.

Business-Type Activities

Water Sewer Communications

Fund Fund Fund Total
% 1,069,834 $ 1,516,021 544298 $ 3,130,153
5861 434 18,574 24,869
1,075,695 1,516,455 562,872 3,155,022
434,302 506,313 740,447 1,681,062
299,745 509,801 1,086,783 1,896,329
133,853 180,660 190,911 505,424
266,280 871,279 714,084 1,851,653
1,134,180 2,068,053 2,732,235 5,934,468
(58,485) (551,598) (2,169,363) (2,779,446)
1,992 2,261 3 4,256
{(410,856) {545,333) {374,949) {1,330,838)
- - 5,596,548 5,596,548
{2,289,385) (2,514,534 - (4,803,919)
- 4,471,905 - 4,471,905
- - (6,390,317 (6,390,317)
(2,697,949) 1,414,299 (1,168,715} {2,452,365)
(2,756,434) 862,701 {3,338,078) (5,231,811)
2,325 982 13,669,773 (2,587,132} 13,408,623
(430,452) $ 14,532,474 (5,925,210) $ 8,176,812
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CITY OF DUNNELLOCN, FLORIDA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 20143

Water Sewer Communications
Fund Fund Fund Total
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers,

Including cash deposits $ 1026923 $ 1,513382 $ 530,454 $ 3,070,459
Cash paid to suppliers {382,186) (461,500) {1,671,007) {2,514,693)
Cash paid to employees {424,913) (497,993) (741,701) {1,664,607)

Net cash provided by {(used in) operating
activities 219824 553,889 {1,882,554) {1,108,841)
Cash fiows from capitai and related
financing activities
Acguisition and construction of

capital assets (434,002) (155,805) 5,983,604 5,693,797
Transfers in/{(out} to other funds (1,282,201) {2,043,289) 4,118,119 792,629
Capital grant contributions - 4,466,362 - 4,466,362
Impairment loss on assets - - (6,390,317) (6,390,317)
Loan proceeds and principal payments 2,939,266 (1,696,196) (977,633) 265,437
{.oan issuance costs (21,108} 85,991 {23,434) 41,752

Interest paid {368,339) (489,164) (379,914) (1,237,417)
Net cash provided by capital and

related financing activities 1,133,616 167,899 2,330,728 3,632,243
Cash flows from investing activities

interest Income 1,992 2,261 3 4,256
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,355,432 724,049 448,177 2,527,658
Cash and cash equivalents,

QOctober 1, 2012 613,533 753,449 59,792 1,426,774
Cash and cash equivalents,

September 30, 2013 $ 1968965 $ 1477498 $ 507,969 3,954,432
Shown [n the financial statements as:

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ - % 197304 $ - 197,304

Restricted cash 1,968,965 1,280,194 507,969 3,757,128
Totals $ 1968965 $ 1,477,498 § 507,969 3,954,432

See notes to financial statements. 23



CITY OF DUNNELLON, FILLORIDA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
provided by {used) in operating activities
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss
to net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in assets decrease (increase) and
liabilities increase (decrease):
Accounts receivable, net
{nventory
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and QPEB payable
Compensated absences
Utility deposits
Total adjustments

Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities

See notes to financial statements.

Water Sewer
Fund Fund

Communications
Fund

Total

$ (68485) $ (551,598)

$ (2,169,363)

$ (2,779,4486)

257,073 798,973 676,597 1,732,643
6,832 (3,073) (32,718) (28,959)

. . (119,688) (119,688)

60,619 301,267 (236,128) 125,758
3,787 4,289 (5,183) 2,893
5,602 4,031 3,929 13,562
(55,604) - (65,604)
278,309 1,105,487 286,809 1,670,605

$ 219824 §$ 553889

$ (1,882,554}

$ (1,108,841)
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
September 30, 20413

Pension
Trust Funds

Assets

Cash and investments $ 2,978,548

Due from other governments 6,819
Total assets $ 2,985,367
Net position

Reserved for:

Employees' pension benefits $ 2,985,367

Total net position $ 2,985,367

See notes to financial statements. 25



CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
PENSION TRUST FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

Pension
Trust Funds
Additions
Contributions
Employer $ 134,459
Forfeitures applied -
Net employer contributions 131,459
State 51,059
Employee 95,185
Total contributions 277,703
investment income increase 312,629
Less: investment management fees -
Net investment income 312,629
Total additions 590,332
Deductions
Pension benefit payments and refunds (86,541)
General and administrative {15,306)
Total deductions (101,847)
Increase in net position 488,485

Net position reserved for employees'
Pension benefits:

Net position, beginning of year 2,496,882

Net position, end of year $ 2,985,367

See notes to financial statements. 26



CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
NOTES TG FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
NOTE 1. DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity - The City of Dunnellon (the City) is a Florida municipality governed by an
elected five-member City Council. The City provides services to its citizens including water,
sanitation and sewer, police and fire protection, parks and recreation, streets, and other general
governmental activities. The City was established by Laws of Florida 71-616.

The accompanying financial statements present the financial position, results of operations and
cash flows of the applicable funds administered by the City Council of the City and its component
unit in accordance with governmental accounting standards. Blended component units, although
legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the government's operations. Financial
accountability is present if the City Council appoints a voting majority of a component unit's
governing body and has the ability to impose its will on that organization or if there is a potential

for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens
on, the City.

Biended component unit. The financial activity of the City of Dunnellon, Florida Community
Redevelopment Agency (the Agency), is included in the financial reporting entity as a blended
component unit. The Agency was established by Ordinances #00-3 and #2011-07 as provided in
Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, for the fostering of economic development in the downtown area of
the City. The City Council serves as the Agency’s governing board. The Agency is fiscally dependent
on the City, and the City Council approves the Agency’s annual budget as a component of the City's
budget. The Agency is presented as a governmental fund type.

1. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues,
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and
charges for support . The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are
those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. indirect expenses are
allocated automatically and certain indirect costs are included in program expenses reported for
individual functions and activities. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a
given function or segment; and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds. The fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
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statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue
in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided; (2) operating grants and contributions; and (3) capital grants and

contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than
program revenues.

2. Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are
collected within sixty days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting, However, debt service
expenditures, as well as expenditures related 1o compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise fees, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current
fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when
cash is received by the government.

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for all or most of a government's
general activities. The City operates the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Fund

The Special Revenue Fund is used to account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specific purposes.

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise funds ~ to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that costs of providing
goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges. Enterprise funds of the City are as follows:

¢ Sewer Fund
* Water Fund
¢  Communications Fund
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Fiduciary Funds

Pension trust funds are used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity. The types
of fiduciary funds used by the City are the general employees’ pension trust fund and the special
risk employees’ pension trust fund.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City conforms all significant accounting policies to generally accepted accounting principles
applicable to government units. The following is a summary of the more significant principles and
practices used in the preparation of these financial statements.

Proprietary Funds

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to
the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidelines of GASB. Based on the
accounting and reporting standards set forth in GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting, the City has opted to apply only the accounting and reporting pronouncements issued
by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) on or before November 30, 1989, for
business-type activities and enterprise funds.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the City's enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds inciude the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to
generally use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources, as they are needed for
their intended purposes, however, this decision is frequently made on a case-by-case basis based
upon facts and circumstances. Revenues of the enterprise funds are recognized on the basis of
services rendered. Billing cycles of the enterprise funds that overlap September 30, are prorated
based upcn meter reading dates.

Budgeting

The annual operating budget serves as legal authorization for expenditures and the proposed
means of financing them. The 2013 annual operating budget was prepared for all funds, except
the pension trust funds, which are not budgeted annually by the City Council.

The City’s procedures in preparing and adopting the annual budget are as follows:

¢ The City Manager is responsible for preparing a proposed operating budget for the
upcoming year prior to September 30 that includes estimated revenues, proposed
expenditures, and other financing sources and uses,
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» Public heatings are held to obtain taxpayer comments and suggestions. The budget is
enacted through passage of a resolution,

¢« The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within any fund, but may not
revise total fund expenditures without the approval of the City Council. The budgetary data
presented is in agreement with the originaily adopted budget.

e Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principies.
Total budgeted fund expenditures within the governmental fund type may not be exceeded

legally. Appropriations lapse at the end of the year. Encumbrance accounting is not used
by the City.

Investments

The City accounts for investments in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and External Investment Pools. Under this provision,
investments are recorded at fair value on the balance sheets. Investment income, including

changes in the fair value of investments, is reported as revenue in the statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in fund balances.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans

and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, the investments within the pension trust funds
are stated at market vaiue.

Receivables

Governmental and Business-type activities receivables are comprised generally of amounts due
from customers. Customer accounts receivable are recorded at their net realizable value reduced
by an allowance for uncollectible accounts of $7,964 for 2013. Other receivables in the General
Fund consist primarily of franchise fees and receivables from miscellaneous services.

Payables

Accounts Payable in the Governmental Funds and Business-type Funds consists primarily of
amounts due to vendors,

Due from Other Governments

Due from other governments represents amounts due from the State of Fiorida or Marion County
for shared revenues or costs. Due from Other Governments is considered fully collectible.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are recorded at
historical cost, except for $249,192 of assets in the proprietary fund and $89,858 of assets in the
general fund, acquired prior to 1975, which are valued at estimated historical cost. Donated
capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value at the time of acquisition. Capital asset
purchases are recorded as capital outlay expenditures in the fund level governmentat funds in the
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year of acquisition. Property, plant, and equipment and infrastructure are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Piant, buildings, and improvements 10 - 40 vears
Machinery, vehicles, and equipment 5-7 years
Infrastructure 30 years

The City has opted out of retroactively recording and depreciating major infrastructure assets.

Expenditures for ordinary repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.

Transfers

Transfers are recognized in the accounting period in which the interfund receivable or payable
arise,

Compensated Absences

In governmental fund financial statements, the amount of compensated absences associated with
employee vacations that are recorded as expenditures represent the amounts paid during the vear,
plus the amount accrued at year-end that would normally be liquidated with available spendable
resources. Only the amount of compensated absence labliity that would normally be liquidated
with current expendable available resources in the next fiscal year is recorded in the fund financial
statements of governmental funds. In the government-wide financial statements, all governmental
fund compensated absences are recorded and split between the current and noncurrent portions.

In proprietary funds, the amount of compensated absences associated with employee vacations
that are recorded as expenses represent the amounts paid during the year and accrued at year-
end. The entire liability for compensated absences of these funds is reflected in the respective
financial statements split between the current and noncurrent portions.

Prior to August 1999, no accrual was made for unpaid vacation since City policy did not allow for
carryover of vacation time unless by special permission from City Council. For all employees, (who
are not within a union bargaining unit) they may accumulate and carry over a maximum of twenty
work days. An accrual has been made for unpaid sick pay under the City’s policy to pay an
employee in good standing 50% of all unused sick pay, upon retirement or voluntary resignation.
There is a $5,000 maximum of unused sick pay. Employees with 25 years or more of service in
good standing will receive 100% of accrued sick pay upon retirement.

Property Taxes

Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the coilection of all county, municipal and
school board property taxes are consolidated in the offices of the County Property Appraiser and
County Tax Collector. The laws of the state regulating tax assessment are aiso designed to assure
a consistent property valuation method statewide. Florida Statutes permit municipalities to levy
property taxes at a rate of up to 10 mills. The millage rate assessed by the City for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2013 was 6.8013 mills.

The tax levy of the City is established by the City Council prior to October 1 of each year, and the
Marion County Property Appraiser incorporates the City’s millage into the total tax levy, which
includes the County and the County School Board tax requirements.
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All property is assessed according to its fair market value January 1 of each year. Each
assessment roll is submitted to the Executive Director of the Florida Department of Revenue for
review to determine if the rolls meet all of the appropriate requirements of Florida Statutes.

All taxes are assessed on November 1 of each year, or as soon thereafter, as the assessment roll is
certified and delivered to the County Tax Collector. All unpaid taxes become delinquent on April 1
following the year in which they are assessed. Discounts are allowed for early payment at the rate
of 4% in the month of November, 3% in the month of December, 2% in the month of January, and
1% in the month of February. Taxes paid in March are without discount.

On or prior to June 1 following the tax year, certificates are sold for all delinquent taxes on real
property. After sale, tax certificates bear interest of 0-18% per year or at any lower rate bid by the
buyer. Application for a tax deed on any unredeemed tax certificates may be made by the
certificate holder after a period of two years. Unsold certificates are held by the County.

Delinquent taxes on personal property bear interest of 0-18% per year until the tax is satisfied
either by seizure and sale of the property or by the five-year statute of limitations.

The City does not accrue its portion of the County held tax sale certificates or personal property tax
warrants because such amounts are not measurable and available as of the balance sheet date.

Franchise Fees

Continuing franchise fees are reported as revenues as the fees are earned and become receivable
from the franchise.

Capital Grants and Contributions

Accounts receivable from other governments include amounts due from grantors. Program and
capital grants for capital assets are recorded as receivables and revenues at the time reimbursable
costs are incurred. Revenues received in advance of costs being incurred are deferred.

Fund Balances
A. Governmental Funds
As of September 30, 2013, fund balances of the governmental funds are classified as follows:

Non-spendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in non-spendabie form or
because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact,

Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional
provisions, charter requirements or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are
externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other
governments.

Committed -~ amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action of

the City Council. The City Council is the highest level of decision making for the City. Commitments
may be established, modified, or rescinded only through resolutions approved by the City Council,
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Assigned - amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but
that are intended to be used for specific purposes. Under the City's general procedure, only the City
Council may assign amounts for specific purposes.

Unassigned - all other spendable amounts.

As of September 30, 2013, fund balances are composed of the following:

Restricted for Downtown Redevelopment $ 84,942
Committed for:
Roads and streets 1,569,224
Public safety 49,767
infrastructure 56,247
Cemetery perpetual care 43,452
Tree fund 73
Emergency reserve 157
Assigned for:
Capital improvements 624,343
Unassigned (deficit) {(98.436)
$ 2329769

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes to which both restricted and unrestricted fund
balance is available, the City considered restricted funds to have been spent first. When an
expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available,
the City considers amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds,

and finally unassigned funds, as needed, uniess the City Commission has provided otherwise in its
commitment or assignment actions.

B. Proprietary Funds

Restrictions of equity show amounts that are not appropriated for expenditure or are legally
restricted for specific uses.

As of September 30, 2013, net position balances are composed of the following:

Amount
Invested in capital assets, net $ 4,988 333
Restricted, debt service 1,238,245
Restricted, capital projects 4,979,381
Unrestricted (deficit) (3,029,147)
$ 8,176,812

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the enterprise funds consider all highly liquid

investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to
be cash equivalents,

NOTE 2. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

For the fiscal year ending September 30, 2013, the City is required to utilize a new financial
statement disclosure standard issued by GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk
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Disclosures, which required additional disclosures concerning investment and deposit risk as
stated below.

Pooled Cash and Investments

The City maintains a cash and investment pool, which carries substantially all cash and
investments of the City, and is used by all funds except the pension trust funds. Each fund's portion
of the pool is displayed in the accompanying financial statemenis as “Cash and Investmenis”. The
cash and investments of the pension trust funds are held separately from those other funds of the
City.

Cash Deposits

Chapter 280 of the Florida Statutes requires, in general, that all public deposits (including those of
the City) be made in qualified public depositories within the state of Florida. Per statute, no
qualified public depository may hold public deposits exceeding 10% of that qualified public
depository’s total deposits received in this state, or 10% of the total public deposits held by all
qualified public depositories of the same type. Additionally, no qualified public depository may
accept or retain any public deposit in excess of deposit insurance limits unless it pledges eligible
coilateral having a market value equal to 50% of the public deposits held by the depository.

In the event of a default or insolvency of a qualified public depository, the loss to public depositors
shall be satisfied, first through any applicable deposit insurance and then through the sale of
securities pledged by the defaulting depository. If the loss to public depositors is not covered by
such insurance or the proceeds of such sale, the State Treasurer shall provide coverage of the

remaining loss by assessment against the other qualified public depositories of the same type as
the depository in default.

All of the City’s cash deposits (excluding investmenis) at September 30, 2013, were held by
qualified public depositories within the state of Florida and are considered to be fully insured. Total
deposits as of September 30, 2013, are $6,292,061.

Restricted Cash

Customer deposits, renewal and replacement, and unspent use benefit fees are shown as
restricted cash due to legal limitations imposed on them.

investments

investments are recorded in all funds of the City at fair value. The deposits and investments of the
pension trust funds are held separately from those of other City funds and are recorded at fair
value.

The City’s investment policy aliows the City to invest surplus money in instruments provided by
Florida Statutes. Among them are U.S. Treasury bills, bonds, notes and their derivatives, federal
agency securities, local government surplus trust fund, domestic time deposits, bankers
acceptance notes, repurchase agreements, federal securities trusts, collateralized mortgage
obligations, assets-backed securities, taxable and tax-exempt securities, and morigage securities
mutual funds.
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As of September 30, 2043, the City had the following investments and maturities:

investment Fair Value
State Board of Administration (SBA)
Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund $ 113295
Fund B Surplus Funds Trust Fund 26,189

Pension Funds
Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund - Firefighters and

Police Officers (FMIVT) 1,847,317
Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund - Genera} Employees (CitiStreet) 1,131,231
Total 3,118,032
Cash deposits 6.152.577
Total cash and investments $ 9.270.609
As shown on the accompanying financial statements as:
Cash and investments - entity-wide $ 6,202,061
Cash and investments - fiduciary funds 2,978,548
Total cash and investments $ 9,270,609

State Board of Administration

Investments placed with the State Board of Administration for participation in the Local
Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund and the Fund B Surplus Fund Trust Fund investment pools
created by Sections 218.405 and 218.417, Florida Statutes, are not registered with the Securities
and Exchange Commission. On December 4, 2007, the State Board of Administration restructured
the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund (Pool) to also establish the Fund B Surplus Funds
Trust Fund. The local investments operate under the guidelines established by Section 218.415,
Florida Statutes. The Council’s investments in the Pool, which the State Board of Administration
indicates is a Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 2aT7-like external investment pool, as of
September 30, 2013, are similar to money market funds in which shares are owned in the fund

rather than the underlying investments. These investments are reported at fair value, which is
amortized cost.

The City's investments in the Fund B Surplus Trust Fund are accounted for as a fluctuating net
asset value pool, with a fair value factor of 1.13262284 at September 30, 2013. The Fund B is
not subject to participant withdrawal requests. Distributions from Fund B, as determined by the
State Board of Administration, are effected by transferring eligible cash or securities to the Local
Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund, consistent with the pro rata allocation of Pool shareholders
of record at the creation of Fund B. One hundred percent of such distributions from Fund B are
available as a liquid balance within the Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund.

Credit Risk

Credit risk exists when there is a possibility the issuer or other counterparty to an investment may
be unable to fulfill its obligations. GASB Statement No. 40 requires disclosure of credit quality
ratings for investments in debt securities as well as investments in external investment pools,
money market funds, and other pooled investments of fixed-income securities.
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Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund - Police and Firefighters Pension Fund

Fixed Income Funds: Fitch Rating
FMIVT Broad Market High Quality Bond Fund AA/V4

Equity Funds:
FMIVT High Quality Growth Portfolio Not Rated
FMIVT Large Cap Diversified Value Portfolio Not Rated
FMIVT Russel! 1000 index Portfolio Not Rated
FMIVT Diversified Smait Cap Equity Portfolio Not Rated
FIVUIVT international Blend Portfalio Not Rated

Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund - General Employees’ Pension Fund

Fixed Income Funds: Fitch Rating
Vanguard Intermediate Bond Index Not Rated
Vanguard Total Bond Market Index Not Rated
Vanguard Long-term Treasury Not Rated
Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities Not Rated
Balanced Vanguard Wellington Fund Not Rated

Custodiai Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities
that are in the possession of an outside party. The City's pension funds are held in the name of an

outside party.
interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk exists when there is a possibility that changes in interest rates could adversely
affect an investment’s fair value. GASB Statement No. 40 requires that interest rate risk be stated
using a prescribed method.

Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund - Police and Firefighters Pension Fund

Fixed Income Funds: Average Maturity
FMIVT Broad Market High Quality Bond Portfolio 5.54 years

Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund ~ General Employees’ Pension Fund

Fixed Income Funds: Average Maturity
Vanguard Intermediate Bond Index 7.2 years average
Vanguard Total Bond Market index 7.5 years average
Vanguard Long-term Treasury 24.3 years average
Vanguard Inflation-Protected Securities 8.2 years average
Balanced Vanguard Wellington Fund 8.5 years average

State Board of Administration Investments
Surplus Funds Trust Fund Investment Pool 44 day average
Fund B Surplus Funds Trust Fund 4.04 year average

Concentration Risk

If 5% or more of the total assets of the portfolio are invested with issuer, that information per
issuer and the percentage of total assets are to be disclosed exciuding investments issued or
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guaranteed by the U.S. government and investments in mutual funds or pools. Since the City's
pension funds are invested in pooled funds, the City is excluded from this disclosure.

NOTE 3. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2043, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance fncreases Reclassification Balance
Governmentat Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and improvements 3 3,187,443 $ 22,628 $ - 3 3,210,071
Construction in progress - “ - -
Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,187,443 22628 - 3,210.071
Capitat assets being depreciated:
Buildings 961,902 48,084 - 1,009,986
fmprovements other than buildings 833,347 - - 833,347
Furniture, equipment and machinery 2,292,001 15 956 - 2,307 957
Total capital assets being depreciated 4,087,250 64.040 - 4,151 290
Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings (396,953) (23,684) - {420,634)
Improvements other than buildings (292,328) (28,157) - {320,485}
Furniture, equipment and machinery {1,945 053) {119.796) - (2.064,849)
Total accumulated depreciation (2.634,334) (171,634} - {2.805,968)
TFotal capital assets being depreciated, net 1.452.916 (107,594} - 1,345,322

Governmental activities capital assets, nat 8 4640359 % (84,966} $ - $ 4,555,393

Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated;

tand and improvements $ 274,835 $ - 3 - $ 274,835

Construction In progress 5,866,615 110,329 (5,866,615} 110,329
Total capital assets not being depreciated 6,141,450 110,329 (5,866,615} 385164
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 865,110 - (58,627} 806,583

improvements other than building 28,682,770 6,020,888 (3,809,062) 30,894,596

Machinery and equipment 3,649,851 65,5665 (2,156.375) 1,659,041
Total capital assets being depreciated 33,197,731 6,086,453 (6,023,964 33,260,220
Less accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and improvements (1,027,913) {33,5b55) - {1,061,468)

improvements other than buitding (3,760,890} (1,106,292} - (4,867,182)

Equipment (558,298) (592.796) - (1,151 094)
Total accumulated depreciation (5,347,101} (1,732,643) “ {7,079,744)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 27,850,630 4,353,810 {6,023,964) 26,180,476

Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 33992080 _$ 4464139 $(11.890,579) $ 26565640

Depreciation expense:
Governmental activities

General government and administration $ 40,511
Pubtic safety

107,124
Physical environment

107
Transportation 7,719
Culture and recreation 16,173
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 171634
Business-type activities
Water $ 287,074
Sewer 795,972
Communications 676,597
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 1.729643
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NOTE 4. CAPITAL LEASES

In 2011, the City ohtained a capital lease to purchase a vehicle for the fire department valued at
$26,358. The City began making annual principal and interest payments in March 2011. The
interest rate is 2.1%. This was paid in full during the current year.

in 2011, the City obtained a capital lease to purchase router equipment valued at $311,746. The
City began making annual principal and interest payments in June 2011. The interest rate is
3.27%. This was paid in full during the current year.

In 2011, the City obtained a capital iease to purchase headend equipment valued at $4,521,729.
The City began making monthly principal and interest payments in March 2011. The interest rate
is 10.6%. This equipment was writien down to the net realizable value based upon sale of the
assets in December, 2013. Monthly payments were suspended on this lease by the City
subsequent to year end in anticipation of sale of the financed assets.

These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have

been recorded at the present value of their future minimum lease payments as of the inception
date.

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Governmental
Activities Business-type Activities
Fire
Department Cisco Core Headend
Vehicie Router Equipment

Asset

Machinery and equipment $ 26,358 $ 311,746 $ 350,126

{(Accumulated depreciation) (14,058) (1.2,968) (50,126)
Total $ 12,300 $ 298778 % 300,000

Annual Requirements fo Capital Leases

Maturities of capital leases for the years ending September 30, 2013 are as follows:

Business-type

Activities

Headend Total ~ Debt
Year Equipment [hterest Service
2014 $ 309,073 $ 84,275 $ 393,348
2015 344,807 48 721 393,528
2016 219,264 10,485 229,749

$ 873,144 $143,481 $1,016,625
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NOTE 5. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2043, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Governmental Activities
Capitai lease - FD vehicle $ 8808 § $ (8,808 $ - % -
Compensated ahsences 119,008 100,082 {(BB.T77) 130,313 84,703
OPER payabte 20,400 1,700 22,100 -
Total Govesnmental Activities 3 148216 % 101782 % (97585 $ 152413 & 84,703
Business-type Activities
State revolving loan $ 3237313 % ${3,196,377) $% 40,936 % 6,682
Revenue bonds payable 16,822,652 7,141,413 (3,300,838) 20,663,227 2,481,439
Compensated absences 176,592 102,497 (88,934} 190,155 101,526
Capital lease - Cisco Router 101,717 (201,717} - -
Capital lease - Headend equipment 1,150,185 (277,041 873,144 309,063
OPEB payable 9,600 2,680 (380) 11,200 -
Total business-type activities $ 21498059 _§ 7.246.590 _$(6.965287) _$ 21779362 _$ 2898710

Water/Sewer Improvement Revenue Bonds

On December 27, 2010, the City closed on a bond issue from Regions Bank in the total amount of
$7,952,033. The proceeds of the bond issue were used to retire the USDA financing totaling

$559,000 with the balance used in the ongoing sewer improvement project.

in February 2013,

the City entered into an extension agreement with Regions Bank in order to facilitate the remaining

draw down of the revenue bonds.

This balance is to be used in ongoing sewer and water

improvement projects. Maturity of this bond agreement for the years ending September 30, are as

follows:

Revenue Bond 2010A

September 30 Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 20,848 $ 16,789 % 37,637
2015 21,555 16,071 37,626
2016 22,286 15,328 37,614
2017 23,041 14,559 37,600
2018 23,822 13,765 37,587

2019-2023 131,786 55,936 187,722
2024-2025 262,531 19,242 281,593
$ 505869 $ 151,690 $ 657559

Revenue Bond 2013

September 30 Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 193,304 $ 238,817 $ 432,424
2015 269,155 230,978 500,133
2016 278,279 221,700 499,979
2017 287,713 212,106 499,819
2018 297,466 202,188 499,654

2019-2023 1,645,606 849 980 2,495 586
2024-2025 4,169,890 316,030 44859020
S 7.141.413 § 2271799 $ 9413212

On December 30, 2011, the City closed on a bond issue from Branch Bank & Trust Company in the
amount of $6,500,000. The proceeds of the bond were used in the ongoing sewer improvement
project, as well as improvements to the water system. The bond is payable in 10 payments to
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include 2.64% interest beginning June 1, 2012 and semiannually thereafter on each June 1 and
December 1 of each vyear up to and including maturity on December 1, 2016.

Branch Bank & Trust Bond

September 30 Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 260,000 $ 461,964 $ 421,964
2015 265,000 155,034 420,034
2016 270,000 147,972 417,972
2017 5,470,000 72,204 5,542,204

$ 6,265,000 $ 5371474 $_ 6802174

Telecommunications Revenue Bonds

On November 18, 2010, the City closed on bond issues from Regions Bank in the amounts of
$3,300,000 and $2,200,000 with terms ranging to 15 years. These proceeds are being utilized to
construct the City’s telecommunications utility. Although certain general revenues are pledged on
this debt, the City anticipated full repayment to be made from future telecommunications
revenues. Subsequent to year end, November 2012, the City refinanced the bond in the amount of
$2,200,000, extending repayment from five years to 10 years, with an interest rate of 3.20%,
requiring a down payment of $275,000. This change is reflected in the Schedule of Annual
Requirements to Retire Long-Term Debt that follows, The City also was issued a line of credit from
Regions Bank in the amount of $1,850,000 with the terms due in one year. These proceeds were
being utilized to cover operating expenses of the City's telecommunications utility. At September
30, 2013 the balance on this loan was $1,650,000. in November 2012, the City signed an
extension which required a down payment of $200,000 with the remaining balance plus interest

due on November 1, 2013. Maturity on these bond agreements for the years ending September
30, are as follows:

Revenue Bond 2010A

September 30 Principal interest Total
2014 $ 128,345 $ 114,497 $ 242842
2015 132,980 109,696 242,676
2016 137,781 104,722 242,503
2017 142,755 99 569 242,324
2018 147,908 94,229 242,137

2019-2023 823,593 384,059 1,207,652
2024-2025 1,662,763 159,988 1,822 751

$ 3,176,128 $ 1.066.760 $ 4242885
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Revenue Bond 20138

September 30 Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 228940 $ 57,937 $ 286,877
2015 220,010 50,754 270,764
2016 227,050 43,601 270,651
20147 234,316 36,219 270,635
2018 241,814 28,601 270,415

2019-2022 772,870 37,617 810,487

$ 1,925,000 $ 254,729 $ 2,179,729

Line of Credit 201.3C

September 30 Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 1,650,000 $ 16,195 $ 1,666,195

$ 1650000 $ 16,195 $ 1,666,195

These bonds were renegotiated subsequent to year end as described in Note 13,

State Revolving Loan (SRL)

In 2005, the City obtained a construction loan from the Florida Department of Environmental
Ptotection for $3,056,000. The proceeds were used for Phase 1 of a large sewer project to
upgrade the system. In 2007, the loan was amended to include the construction cost of Phase 2 in
the amount of $2,292 642, The loan is collateralized by net revenues of the sewer utility fund. A
reserve in the amount of $33,333 has been established as required by the loan agreement. In
February 2007, the City began making semiannual loan repayments with interest of 1.91% for
Phase 1 and 1.77% for Phase 2 over the next twenty years.
reduced the amount of the loan by $1,546,868. The City continued making semiannual loan
repayments. The balance of this loan is $40,936 as of September 30, 2013, The City expects to

pay this remaining amount due subsequently to the fiscal year end.

Annual Requirements to Retire Long-term Debt

An amendment in July of 2011

Maturities of iong-term debt for the vears ending September 30, are as follows:
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Business-type Activities Total

Principal Total Debt
Year Bonds SRL LOC interest Service
2014 % 831,437 $ 13,408 $ 1.650,000 $ 634,674 $ 3,129,519
2015 908,700 13,646 - 562,959 1,485,305
2016 935,396 13,882 - 533,507 1,482,785
2017 6,157,825 - - 434,657 6,592 482
2018 711,010 - - 338,783 1,049,793
2019-2023 3,373,855 - - 1,327,592 4,701,447
2024-2027 6,095,004 - 495,260 6,590,264
Total $ 19013227 $ 40,938 $ 1,650,000 $ 4327433 $ 25031596

NOTE 6. LEGAL COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

At year end, the Communications Fund had a deficit net position of $5,925,210. This deficit was
the result of the City's startup costs of its Greenlight communications services which offers
internet, telephone and video services to area businesses and residences. Due fo the lack of
capital to support the system until it becomes profitabie, the City has subsequently decided to sell
the system. As a result, the assets were written down to the net realizable value which is reflected
as an impairment loss. The sale occurred subsequent to year end. The Water Fund also had a
deficit net position of $430,482. This deficit was the result of transfers to the Communications
Fund in order for it to meet its cash needs. This is not to be an expected trend.

NOTE 7. DEFINED BENEFIT/DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION PLANS

Florida State Retirement System

All full-time employees of the City hired prior to January 1, 1996, participate in the Florida State
Retirement System (the System). This System was created by the Florida Legislature and is a cost-
sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit public retirement plan available to governmental units
within the state of Florida. The System issues a publicly available financiat report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. That report may be
obtained by writing to the Florida Retirement System, Division of Retirement, Depariment of

Management Services, P.O. Box 9000, Tallahassee, Florida 32315-9000, or by calling (877) 377-
1737 or (850) 488-5706.

All full-time employees of the City hired prior to January 1, 1996, are eligible to participate in the
System. Special risk employees who retire at or after age 55, with ten years of creditable service;
and all other employees who retire at or after age 62, with ten years of creditable service; are
entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to the product of (1) average
monthly compensation in the highest five years of creditable service; {2) creditable service during
the appropriate period; and (3) the appropriate benefit percentage. Benefits fully vest on reaching
six years of service. Vested employees may retire after six years of creditable service and receive
reduced retirement benefits. The System also provides death benefits, disability benefits and
annual cost-of-living adjustments. Benefits are established by Florida Statute.

The funding methods and the determination of benefits payable are provided in various acts of the
Florida Legisiature. These acts require that employers, such as the City, contribute the following
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percentages of eligibie compensation to the plan: 6.95% for regular members, 12.84% for DROP
members, 19.86% for special risk members, and 18.31% for senior management effective July 1,
2013. Beginning July 1, 2011, employees are required to also contribute 3% into the System. The
City’s contributions to the System for the years ended September 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011, were
as follows, equal to the required contributions for each year:

Year Total

2013 $ 214,234
2012 21,234
2011 30,462

Florida State Retirement System Opt-Out

In December 1995, the City Council approved opting out of the Florida State Retirement System
effective with all new employees hired after January 1, 1996. City employees covered under the
System at December 31, 1995, will continue to participate in the System and the City will continue
to make contributions on their behalf.

Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund {(Defined Contribution Plan)

in January 1996, the City adopted the Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund Pension Plan
administered by the Florida League of Cities. The plan is available to all general employees hired
beginning January 1, 1996, and who have remained employed for at least six months. The City will
contribute 6% of the eligibie employee's salary. Additionally, the City will contribute 1% for each
1% the employee contributes for a maximum of 12% of employer contribution.

Employee contributions are voluntary and have certain contribution limits. Vesting in the plan is
determined by the number of years of service. Employees vest at 25% at two years of service
increasing incrementally by 25% each year thereafter. Vesting of 100% occurs at five years.

At September 30, 2013, there were 39 active members in the plan.
Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund (Defined Benefit Plan)

Plan Description

In January 1996, the City adopted the Florida Municipal Pension Trust Fund Pension Plan
administered by the Fiorida League of Cities. The plan is avaiiable to all full-time police officers

and full-time firefighters hired by the City beginning January 41, 1996. Eligibility becomes
immediate after hire date.

The firefighters’ and police officers’ pension plan covers all full-time officers and firefighters.
Members of the firefighters’ and police officers’ pension plan do not vest in their pension benefits
until they have compieted ten years of service. Firefighters and police officers that retire at the
earlier age of fifty-five and have completed ten years of service, or age fifty-two and twenty-five
years of credited service are entitied to a monthly retirement benefit, payable for life or a minimum
of ten years, in an amount equal to 2% of their final monthly compensation. The plan also provides
for death and disability benefits. Administrative costs are financed through investment earnings.

Contributions

Firefighters and police officers were required to contribute 1% of their annual salary to the plan for
the year ended September 30, 2013. The City is required to contribute the remaining amounts
necessary to fund the plan, using the actuarial determined amounts. Insurance excise taxes
remitted by the state to the pension plan are available to offset City contributions up to the 1997
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base amount. The increment above the base amount is to provide extra benefits to the firefighters
and police officers.

As of the most recent actuarial reports dated October 4, 2011, the pian had the following number
of participants:

Annual Pension Costs and Net Pension Obligation

Active 13
Retired, disabted, vested terminations and beneficiaries 7
Total number of participants 20

The City's annual pension costs and net pension obligation to the Firefighters’ and Police Officers’

Defined Benefit Plan based on the most recent actuarial information {(valuation date October 1,
2011) was as follows:

Annuai required contribution {ARC) $ 12,000
Interest on net pension obligation 1,000
Adjustment to ARC {4,000}
Annual pension costs 9,000
Contributions made (5,000)
Increase in net pension obligation (NPQ) 4,000
Net pension obligation (asset), beginning of vear 30,000
Net pension ohligation (asset), end of year $ 34000

COther Pension Plan information

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the October 1,

2011, actuarial valuation using the aggregate actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions
include the following:

* The present value of future pension payments was computed by using a discount rate of
7.5%. The discount rate is equal to the estimated fong-term rate of return on current and
future investments of the pension plans.

» Future pension payments reflect an assumption of annual salary increase rates of 6.27%.
The actuarial value of assets was determined using market value.

Three-year Trend information

Annual Percentage Net
Pension of APC Pension
Fiscal Year Ending Costs (APC) Contributed Obligation
September 30, 2013 $ 92,153 97% $ 34,000
September 30, 2012 86,716 73% 38,913
September 30, 2011 102,646 98% 15,619
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Schedule of Changes in Pension Plan Net Position as of Septernber 30, 2013

Pension Trust Funds

General Special
Employees Risk Total

Assets

Cash and investments $  1,131231 $ 1,847,317 $ 2978548

Due from other governments - 5,819 6.819
Total assets 1.131.231 1854136 2,985,367
Total liabilities -
Net assets

Reserved for:

Employees’ pension benefits 1,131 231, 1,854,136 2 985 367
Total liabilities and net assets 1131231 1,854,138 2985367
Additions

Contributions:

Employer 131 459 - 131,459

Net employer contributions 134,459 - 131,459

State - 51,059 51,059

Employee 896186 5,569 95,185

Total contributions 221075 56,628 277.703

Investment income 102433 210,196 312629

Net investment income 102,433 210.196 312,629
Total additions 323508 266 824 590,332
Deductions

Pension benefit payment and refunds (65,175) (21,366) (86,541)

General and administrative {6.605) (8,701) {15.308)
Total deductions {71,780 {30,067} (101.847)
Increase {decrease) In fiduciary net assets 251728 236757 488,485
Net assets reserved for employees

pension benefit

Beginning of year 879.503 1617379 2,496 882

————————————
End of year

Other Post-Employment Benefits (QPEB)

Pursuant to Section 112.08041, Florida Statutes, The City is required to permit participation in the
single-employer health insurance program (the “Plan”) by retirees and their eligible dependents at

a cost to the retiree that is no greater than the cost at which coverage is available for active
employees.

Based on Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) approval of Statement Nos. 43 and
45 which set forth the guidelines and a future implementation timetable for reporting and
disclosure of Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB), the City had an actuary calculate future
funding requirements using an appropriate actuarial cost method. The valuation was performed
as of October 1, 2011 and covers the subsidies for medical and life insurance benefits. The City
has elected to implement the provisions of GASB Statement No. 45 prospectively. The City's
annual OPEB cost for the Plan is caiculated based on the annual required contribution of the
employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement No. 45. The projected unit credit cost method was used {o determine all liabilities, with
the liability for each active employee assumed to accrue over the working lifetime based on
elapsed time from the date of hire until retirement.

Plan Description. The City provides optional post-employment benefits to all eligible individuals

including lifetime medical, prescription, dental, and certain life insurance coverage. Eligible
individuals include all regular employees of the City of Dunnelion who retire from active service
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under one of the pension plans sponsored by the City. Under certain conditions, eligible individuals
also include spouses and dependent children. The Plan does not issue a publicly available financial
report.

Funding Policy. The City Council is authorized to establish benefit levels and approve the actuarial
assumptions used in the determination of contributions levels. The City Council establishes the
contributions requirements of plan members and the City. These contributions are neither
mandated nor guaranteed. The retiree contributes the premium cost each month. Spouses and
other dependents are also eligible for coverage, although the retiree pays the premium cost.

Retirees must pay a monthly premium as determined by the insurance carrier. The premium
varies depending on whether the retiree elects single, single plus spouse, single plus dependents,
or family coverage.

Currently, the City's subsidy to OPEB benefits is unfunded. There are no separate Trust Funds or
equivalent arrangements into which the City makes contributions to advance-fund the OPEB
obligations, as it does for its retiree pension plans. The City’s cost of the OPER benefits, funded on
a pay-as-you-go basis, was $4,000 for the year ended September 30, 2013.

The ultimate implicit and explicit subsidies which are provided over time are financed directly by
general assets of the City, which are invested in short-term fixed income instruments according to
its current investment policy. The City selected an interest discount rate of 4.00% per annum,
which is the long-range expected return on such short-term fixed income instruments, to calcuiate

the present values and costs of the OPEB. This is consistent with GASB Statement No. 45
guidelines.

Significant Actuarial Assumptions and methods used to estimate the OPEB liability are as follows:

Valuation date.....ciiiiiece e, October 1, 2011
Actuarial cost method.......cv v, Aggregate
Amortization method.........occveeiiieiees e Level Percentage, open
Amortization period. . v 30 years

Assumes rate of return on investments................ 4.00% per annum

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates:

Fiscal Year Percent

Ending Increase
2014 N 8.50%
2015 7.00%
2016 6.50%
2017 6.00%

Actuarial Methods. The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of
events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as
actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive Plan (the Plan

as understood by the employer and Plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at
the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the
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employer and Plan members to that point. Actuarial calculations refiect a long-term perspective
and the methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects
of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.

Annual OPEB cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City's annual OPEB cost (expense) is calculated
based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a
level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and
amortize the actuarial liabilities {or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years. The City's
annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year was $4,000.

The City's annual OPEB cost and the net OPEB obligation for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2013 is as follows:

Annual required contribution (ARG .evecieeeeervrerreronene $ 12,000
Interest on the net OPEB oObligation..cc.occvvrnneeernesernnen 1,000
Adjustment to the ARC...... e e, (4,000)

9,000
Employer contributions.... i {5,000)

interest on employer contributions

..................................

4,000

Net OPEB obligation - beginning of vear......cccoveevvvcvennn. 30,000
Net OPLB obligation - end of year......ccicivivcecininnnin $ 34,000

The City's percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net OPEB obligation for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013 is as follows:

Percentage
of Annual Net
Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Cost OPEB
Ending QOPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
9/30/2013 $ 93,057 96% $ 34,000

The 2013 contribution represented 96% of the annual required contribution. The actuarial

valuation for the Plan was done as of October 1, 2011. Thereafter, actuarial valuations will be
done bi-annualiy.

As of Cctober 4, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Plan was unfunded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $758,063, and the actuarial value of assets was
$802,214, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $-O-.

The following Schedule of Funding Progress presents multivear frend information about whether
the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time reiative to the actuarial
accrued liabilities for benefits.

Accrued UAAL as
Actuarial Liabiity Unfunded a% of
Actuarial Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets EAN (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) ) {b-a) a/b) ic) {{b-1)/c)
10/01/2014% 802,214 758,063 - 105.8% 565,373 0.0%
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NOTE 8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Grants and Loans

Under the terms of federal and state grants and loans, periodic audits are required and certain
costs may be questioned as not allowable as expenditures under the terms of the grants which
could lead to reimbursement to the grantor agencies. City management believes disailowances, if
any, will not be material.

Small Community Wastewater Construction Grant Program

During September 2001, the City entered into a grant agreement with the Department of
Environmental Protection entitling them to $723,829 for preconstruction costs associated with the
City's wastewater/sewage system. During the 2004, 2009 and 2010 fiscal years addendums were
made to the original grant agreement to amend the total grant funding. The new grant agreement
is for $10,254,972. The remainder of these grant funds was used to pay on the State Revolving
l.oan baiance.

NOTE 9. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the City carries commercial insurance.
Insurance against losses are provided through the Florida League of Cities, Inc., and Preferred
Government Insurance Trust for the following types of risk:

Workers’ Compensation and employer's liability
General and automobile liability

Real and personal property damage

Public officials’ liability

Accidental death and dismemberment
Dishonesty bond

¢ & & & 6 &

The City’s coverage for workers’ compensation is under a retrospectively rated policy. Premiums
are accrued based on the ultimate cost to-date of the City's experience for this type of risk.

The City is covered for health insurance under a group policy with a commercial carrier with
premiums reassessed annually,

NOTE 10. SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Segment information for the Water and Sewer Enterprise Funds are available in the basic financial
statements and notes to the financial statements.

NOTE 11. LITIGATION
The City is defendant in various pending or threatened litigation. Although the outcome of these

lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the City Attorney, the resolution of these
matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.

48



NOTE 12. LEASED FACILITIES
The City has the following lease agreement for facilities at September 30, 2013:

1. The City has a lease for a warehouse facility with non-cancelable provisions, Rentis $1,700
per month through December 31, 2016. Rent of $20,400 was paid on this lease in the
current year. Monthly payments were suspended on this lease by the City subsequent to
year end in anticipation of terminating the lease. The future minimum lease payments at
September 30, 2013 are as follows:

September 30 Minimum Lease Payments
2014 $ 20,400
2015 20,400
2016 20,400
2017 5,100

3 66,300

NOTE 13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Sale of Telecommunications Assets

On December 23, 2013, subsequent to year end the City entered into an agreement with Florida
Cable, Inc. for the sale of the City’s telecommunications-related assets except for those financed
under a capital lease. Under this agreement, Florida Cable agreed to purchase these assets for
$1,000,000 and immediately assumed operations of the telecommunications services.

Settlement of Telecommunications Revenue Bonds

On March 31, 2014, the City entered into a setilement agreement with Regions Bank (the Bank),
regarding the outstanding Telecommunication Revenue Bonds in the amount of $6,751,125,
Under the terms of the agreement the principal portion of the bonds was reduced to $3,468,750.
The bonds are repayable over a period of approximately 20 years with annual payments of
$175,000 with 0% interest rate. Under the terms of this agreement the City's rights to the
Telecommunication Assets Sale described above was also assigned o the Bank.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENTAL FUND - GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES iN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

Variance with

Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amounts {Negative)
Revenues
Taxes
Ad valorem $ 781,489 % 781,489 % 793612 §% 12,123
Ninth-cent gas tax 50,741 50,741 53,949 3,208
Locai option gas tax 471,223 471,223 451,262 {19,261)
Franchise tax:

Electricity 164,302 164,302 184,393 20,091
Communication service tax 131,795 131,795 151,056 19,261
Fire insurance premium tax - - 6,819 6,819
Utility tax :

Electricity 182,567 182 567 225,961 43,394

Propane 16,000 16,000 18,491 2,491

Total taxes 1,798,117 1,798,117 1,885,543 87,426
Licenses and permits
Professional and cccupational 24,417 24,417 25,258 841
Building permits 43,000 43,000 111,272 68,272
Other licenses and permits 28,540 28,540 28,301 (239)
Total ficenses and permits 95,957 95,957 164,831 68,874
intergovernmental revenue
State, federal and local grants 62,652 62,652 22,174 (40,478)
State shared revenues:

State revenue sharing 78,048 78,048 78,503 455

Mobite home licenses 7,000 7,000 7,416 416

Aicoholic beverage licenses 1,000 1,000 1,664 664

Local government one-half

cent sales tax 94,297 94,297 98,081 3,784

Motor fuel tax rebate 1,200 1,200 3,506 2,306

Total intergovernmental revenue 244,197 244,197 211,344 (32,853)
Charges for services
Copying and records search 800 800 1,693 893
Garbage and solid waste 174,443 174,413 170,749 (3,664)
Cemetery fees 300 300 1,388 1,088
City beach user fees 4,000 4,000 1,150 {2,850)
Other miscellaneous charges 3,500 3,600 27,398 23,898
Total charges for services 183,013 183,013 202,378 19,365
Fines and forfeitures
Court fines 44,500 44,500 99,729 55,299
Other fines 332,700 332,700 350,389 17,689
Total fines and forfeitures 377,200 377,200 450,188 72,988
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CiTY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENTAL FUND - GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

{Continued)
Variance With
Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amounis (Negative)
Misceilaneous revenue
Investment earnings $ 1300 % 1,300 $ 3484 % 24184
Cemetery lots 8,000 8,000 29,643 21,643
Other miscellaneous 416,434 416,434 26,664 (3892,770)
Total miscellaneous revenue 425,734 425,734 59,791 {365,943)
Total revenues $ 3,424218 $ 3124218 $ 2974075 $ (150,143)
Expenditures
General government
Legislative:
Personnel services $ 22212 S 22212 $ 9825 % 12,387
Operating expenses 19,562 19,562 12,700 6,862
Total legislative 41,774 41,774 22,525 19,249
City clerk and general administrative:
Personnel services 36,850 36,850 39,048 {2,198)
Operating expenses 52,534 52,534 61,008 (8,474)
Totai city clerk and general
Administrative 89,384 89,384 100,056 (10,672)
City manager:
Personnel services 20,227 20,227 23,738 (3,511)
Operating expenses 25,622 25522 4,856 20,666
Total city manager 45 749 45,749 28 594 17,155
Legal counsel:
Operating expenses 172,500 172,500 181,089 {8,589}
Comprehensive planning:
Personnel services 69,344 69,344 11,273 58,071
Operating expenses 26,315 26,319 7,817 18,502
Total comprehensive planning 95,663 95,663 19,090 76,574
Finance:
Personnel services 28,721 28,721 26,962 1,759
Operating expenses 23,479 23,479 18,295 5,184
Total finance 52,200 52,200 45,257 6,943
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENTAL FUND - GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

{Continued)
Variance With
Final Budget
QOriginal Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amounts (Negative)
Expenditures (continued)
Building maintenance:
Personnel services $ 37496 % 37,426 % 31,220 % 6,276
Operating expenses 46,872 46,872 23,768 23,104
Capital outlay 46,833 46,833 - 46,833
Total buiiding maintenance 131,201 131,201 54,988 76,213
Garage department:
Personnel services 54,083 54,083 44 969 9,114
QOperating expenses 5,088 5,088 51,289 (46,201)
Total garage department 59,171 59,171 96,258 (37,087)
Total general government 687,642 687,642 547,857 139,785
Public safety
Law enforcement:
Personnel services 737,089 722,364 633,508 83,856
Operating expenses 187,564 211,089 194,342 19,747
Capital outiay 8,800 - 15,956 {15,956)
Total law enforcement 933,453 933,453 840,806 92,647
Fire control:
Personnel services 343,270 313,270 324,529 (8,259)
Operating expenses 115,153 115,153 47,714 67,439
Debt service:
Principal 8,807 8,807 8,808 (1)
Interest 349 349 348 1
Total fire control 437,579 437,579 378,399 59,181
Protective inspections:
Personnel services 8,480 8,480 8,164 316
Operating expenses 30,451 30,451 65,240 (34,789)
Total protective inspections 38,931 38,931 73,404 {34,473)
Total public safety 1,409,963 1,409,963 1,292,609 117,355
Physical environment
Cemetery:
Personnel services 22,913 22913 17,506 5407
QOperating expenses 3,447 3,447 671 2,776
Total Cemetery 26,360 26,360 18,177 8,183
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENTAL FUND - GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

{Conciuded)
Variance With
Final Budget
Original Final Actual Positive
Budget Budget Amounts {Negative)
Expenditures (concluded)
Physical environment
Garbage and solid waste:
Personnel services $ 11,405 $ 11,406 % 89304 % 2,101
Operating expenses 156,800 156,800 148,165 8,635
Total garbage and soiid waste 168,205 168,205 157,469 10,736
Total physical environment 194,565 194 565 175,646 18,919
Transportation
Roads and streets:
Personnel services 257,184 257,184 170,980 86,204
Operating expenses 395,968 395,968 339,021 56,947
Capital Qutlay 59,500 59,500 35,356 24.144
Total transportation 712,652 712,652 545 357 167,294
Human services
Animali control:
Personnel services 11,895 11,895 11,959 (64)
Operating expenses 2,003 2,003 620 1,383
Totai animal control 13,898 13,898 12,579 1,319
Mosquito control:
Operating expenses 23,000 23,000 21,076 1,924
Total human services 36,898 36,898 33,655 3,243
Culture and recreation
Parks and recreaticn:
Personne! services 58,722 58,722 47,435 11,587
Operating expenses 23,776 23,776 20,666 3,140
Total culture and recreation 82,498 82,498 67,8014 14,697
Total expenditures 3,124,218 3,124,248 2,662,925 461,293
Excess of revenues over
expenditures - - 311,150 311,150
Other financing sources (uses)
Capital contributions - - 15,856 15,956
interfund transfers out - - (792,629) {792,629)
- - (776,673) (776,673)
Net change in fund balance - - {465,523) (465,523)
Fund balance, beginning of year 2,710,350 2,710,350 2,710,350 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 2710350 $ 2,710,350 $ 1002631 $ (1,707,719)
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA
GOVERNMENTAL FUND - TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPEND{TURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

Variance
Original With Budget
and Final Actuat Positive
Budget Amounts (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes:
Ad valorem $ 118,606 $ 117,977 $ {629)
Miscellaneous revenue:

Investment earnings 350 355 5
Total revenues 118,856 118,332 (624)
Expenditures

General government:
Industry development:
Personnel services 154,680 122,734 (31,249)
Operating expenses 171,394 59,615 (141,779)
Capital outlay 212,500 35,3586 {(177,144)
Total expenditures 538,574 217,702 (320,872)
Deficiency of revenues
over expenditures {419,618) (99,370) 320,248
Other financing sources
interfund transfers in 419,618 - (419,618)
sources (uses) 419,618 - {419,618)
Net change in fund balance - (99,370) (99,370)
Fund balances, beginning of year 184,312 184,312 -
Fund balances, end of year $ 184,312 % 84942 $% (99,370)

55



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SPECIAL RISK PENSION TRUST FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2013
CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA

Plans that use the aggregate actuarial cost method are not required to present a schedule of
funding progress.

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS FROM EMPLOYER AND OTHERS

Annual
Required
Year Ended Contribution Percentage
September 30, (ARC) (1) Contributed

1998 15,647 100%*
1999 20,797 100%*
2000 25,619 100%*
2001 29,299 100%*
2002 32,362 100%*
2003 36,398 100%*
2004 52,506 100%*
2005 58,816 100%*
2006 45,568 100%*
2007 52,384 100%*
2008 74,849 100%*
2009 77,417 100%*
2010 96,380 1.00%*
2011 102,182 98%

2042 86,716 89%

2013 92,153 97%

(1) Inciudes contributions by excise tax on certain insurance policies collected by the State of Florida.

The City is required to contribute to the balance of the ARC.

*In each year, the City contribution was greater than required. The excess contribution was placed
in the surplus contribution account.

The City obtains an actuarial report every two years. The information presented in the required
supplementary schedules was determined as part of the actuarial valuations at the dates
indicated, Additional information as of the actuarial valuation follows:

Valuation date Qctober 1, 2011
Actuarial cost method Aggregate actuarial cost method
Amortization method Level percentage, open
Remaining amortization period 30 years
Asset valuation method Market value
Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.5%%*

Projected salary increases 6.27%

Cost-of-living adjustments None

*Includes inflation at 3.75%
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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CITY OF DUYNNELLON, FLORIDA
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE SCHEDULE
WAYTER AND SEWER REVENUE BONDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

UNAUDITED
September 30, 2013

Gross revenue (B)

Operating revenue 2,585,855

Interest income 4,253
Total gross revenue 2,590,108
Costs of operation and maintenance

Personnel services 940,615

Operating expenses (C) 809,546
Total costs of operation and maintenance 1,750,161
Gross revenues less costs of operation and maintenance 839,947
Senior Lien Debt Service and Coverage
Senior lien debt service

Regions principal 20,165

Regions interest 202,745

BB&T principal 236,000

BB&T interest 168,498
Total senior lien debt service 626,378
Senior lien debt service coverage for rate covenant {D) 1.34
Non-operating revenue (wastewater project grant funds) (E) 4,471,905
Total pledged funds 5,311,852
Senior lien debt service coverage for all pledged funds 848
Subordinate Lien Debt Service and Coverage
Gross revenues less costs of operation and maintenance 839,947
Senlor lien debt service plus coverage {F) 751,654
Net income available for SRF coverage 88,293
SRF debt service 64,541
SRF debt service coverage (G) 1.37

Notes to the Debt Service Coverage Schedule

{A) Calculations based on figures from the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position {page 21)
{B) Gross revenue includes interest earnings and operating revenues of the Water and Sewer Fund and excludes impact
fees and contributions in aid of construction

{C} Operating expenses exclude depreciation, amortization and expenses related to professional services (professional
services are capital-related for the Utility Master Plan, and system mapping)

{D} Required rate for coverage is 1.10, and for additional bonds 1.20

{E) Grant Revenue is Financially Disadvantaged Small Community Grant Agreement, SC511070, Pledged for Debt Service
per Bond Rasolution

{F) Calculation is total senior lien debt service multiplied by the greater required rate for coverage of 1.20

{G) State Revolving Funds Loan required rate for coverage is 1.15
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SINGLE AUDIT AND
COMPLIANCE SECTION
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

For the Year Ended September 30, 2013

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies and presentation of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
State Financial Assistance of the City of Dunnellon, Florida, (the “City”) have been designed to
conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governmental units, including
the reporting and compiiance requirements of the Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations and Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133.

A. Reporting Entity

The reporting entity consists of the City of Dunnelion, Florida. The City includes a Schedule of

Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance in the Compliance Section for the
purpose of additional analysis.

B. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting related to the timing of the
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is followed in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards and State Financial Assistance. Under the modified accrual basis, revenues are recoghized
when they become measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they
are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60
days after the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability
is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Commission;
City of Dunnellon, Florida

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements of the governmental activities of the City of Dunneilon, Florida, as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively

comprise the City of Dunnellon, Florida’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated April 18, 2014,

Internai Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of
Dunnellon, Florida’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Dunnelion, Florida's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Dunnelion, Florida’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not aliow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be materia! weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Dunnellon, Fiorida's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of iaws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.
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Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

POWELL & JONES
Certified Public Accountants
April 18, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A
DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR STATE PROJECT AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER 10.550, RULES OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL,
CFFICE OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

Honorable Mayor and
City Council
City of Dunnelion, Florida

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Project

We have audited the compliance of City of Dunnelion, Florida with the types of compliance
requirements described in the State of Florida, Department of Financial Services State Projects
Compliance and Supplement, that could have a direct and material effect on its major State project
for the year ended September 30, 2013. City of Dunnellon, Florida’'s major State project is
identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the accompanying Schedule of Findings.

Management's Responsibility

City of Dunnellon, Florida’s management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to its major State projects.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on City of Dunnellon, Florida's compliance for each
major State Project based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicabie to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and Chapter 10.550,
Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General. Those standards and Chapter 10.850,
Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the Auditor General, require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether non-compliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major State
project occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Dunnelion,
Florida’s compliance with those requiremenis and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
State Project. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of City of Dunnellon,
Florida's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major State Project
In our opinion, City of Dunnellon, Florida complied, in all material respects, with the types of

compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its
major State project for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2013,
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Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed no instances of honcompliance, which are required

to be reported in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State of Florida, Office of the
Auditor General.

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of City of Dunnellon, Florida is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered City of Dunneilon, Florida's internal control over
compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
State project to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major State Project and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the State
of Florida, Office of the Auditor General, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of City of Dunnellon, Florida's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a State project on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a State project will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a State Project that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal contro! over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, this report is a public record and its distribution is not
limited. Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America require us to
indicate that this report is intended solely for the information and use of City of Dunnellon, Florida’s
management, State awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

POWELL & JONES
Certified Public Accountants
April 18, 2014
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CITY OF DUNNELLON, FLORIDA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2013

Summary of Auditor's Resuits

Type of auditor's report issued

internal control over financial reparting

* Material weakness identified?

s Reportable condition identified not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Nencompliance material to financial statements

State Financial Assistance

Internal eontrol over major programs:

* Material weakness identified?

+ Significant deficiencies identified that are not

considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Chapter
10.550, Ruies of the Auditor General?

ldentification of major programs:

CSFA Number

37.039

Dollar threshold used to distinguish hetween
Type A and Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
Financial Statement Findings

None
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Unqualified

No
Nohe reported

No

No

None reported

Unqualified

No

Name of State Programs

Department of Environmental
Protection Small Community
Wastewater Construction Grant

$300,000

No



MANAGEMENT LETTER

To The City Council
City of Dunnellon, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Dunnellon, Florida, as of and for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2013, and have issued our report thereon dated April 18, 2014, We
have alsc issued our report on compliance and on internal control over financial reporting. That
report should be considered in conjunction with this management letter.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Additionally our audit
was conducted in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General,
which govern the conduct of local governmental entity audits performed in the State of Florida and
require that certain items be addressed in this letter.

PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

There were no reportable findings in the prior year.

CURRENT YEAR FINDINGS

Finding 201.3-1

Cash Management. For many years, the City has utilized a pooled cash system whereby cash is
centralized in multiple City bank accounts with individua! equity batances reported in the City's five
funds. While this system maintained accurate separate fund cash balances, there was no controi

to prevent expending beyond a fund's cash resources or utilizing restricted cash funds for other
purposes.

To correct this weakness we recommend the following:

1. All restricted cash balances should be maintained in separate bank accounts not a part of
the pooled cash system.

2. I'ndividuai fund cash balances should be reviewed prior to every check run to assure that
current cash is available in each fund to meet its cash obligations.

3. H current funds are not available for the cash obligations, there should be an approval
process for transfers or temporary loans from other funds prior to paying the fund's
obligations.

Finding 2013-02

Fixed Assets. From our review of the City’s fixed assets we found that the detail fixed assets did
not agree with the corresponding general ledger balances. We recommend that the City perform a
comprehensive review and reconciliation of all of its fixed assets during the current year and that
the general ledger balances be adjusted accordingly.
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Finding 2013-03

Compensated Absences. From our review of employee compensated absences balances, we found
that during the current year, the former City Manager occasionally gave employees additional
annual leave or allowed employees paid time off without utilizing their accumulated feave. We

could not find where these actions were provided for in City policy. This has been discontinued by
the current City Manager.

AUDITOR GENERAL COMPLIANCE MATTERS

Annual Local Government Financial Report - The Financial Report filed with the Department of
Financial Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)a), Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the
accompanying financial statements of the City of Dunnellon, Florida, for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2013,

investment of Public Funds - The City complied with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding
the investment of public funds during the fiscal year.

Financial Condition Assessment - As required by the Rules of the Auditor General {Sections
10.554(7)(c) and 10.556(7), we applied financial condition assessment procedures. It is
management's responsibility to monitor the entity's financial condition, and our financial condition
assessment was based in part on representations made by management and the review of
financial information they provided.

The City’s financial condition at September 30, 2013, was deteriorating primarily due to the
transactions relating to the Communications Fund. Specifically, sufficient revenues were not
received in the fund to pay for the required expenditures of the fund during the current fiscal year.
At year end this fund showed a net loss of $(3,338,078) and an ending net position of
$(5,925,210), even after receiving transfers from other City funds of $5,596,548.

Based upon knowledge of this situation, the City took the following actions subsequent to year end:

1. The ensuing year budget was reduced for all departments to the greatest extent possible.

2. The telecommunication system was sold and all related operations were assumed by the
buyer.

3. The debt related to the Communications Fund was renegotiated to lower the total debt by

approximately $3.2 million, reduce the interest rate to 0%, and provide a repayment
structure that is achievable by the City.

Financial Emergency Status - On November 1, 2013, subsequent to year end, the City failed to pay
debt service on three bank bond issues related to its Communications Fund held by Regions Bank:
due to lack of funds to make the payments. We have determined that this condition caused the
City to meet a statutory condition of financial emergency as provided in Section 218.503, Florida
Statutes. The City promptly notified the Governor and Legislative Auditing Committee of this
condition on November 21, 2013, as required by Section 218.503(2), Florida Statutes.

Subsequently, on March 31, 2014 the City and Regions Bank entered into a Settlement Agreement
whereby the principal amounts and interest rates of the bonds were reduced and a new, lower
repayment schedule was set.
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The terms of this agreement are described in Note 1.3 on page 47 of the Annual Financial Report.

Our audit did not disclose any further items that would be required to be reported under the Rules
of the Auditor General, Chapter 10.550.

CONCLUSION

We have reviewed each of our specific findings with appropriate officials or employees and have
provided them with documentation as requested. We very much enjoyed the challenges and
experiences associated with our audit of the City. We appreciate the helpful assistance and
courtesy afforded us by all City employees and look forward to working with you in the future.

POWELL & JONES
Certified Public Accountants
April 18, 2014
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City of Dunneilon Management Response To
Auditors’ Management Letier Comment
Annual Audit FYE 9/30/13

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Dunnellon
Dunnellon, Florida

We have reviewed the audit report for fiscal year ending September 30, 2013 including the
management letter. The following is in response to Powell & Jones CPA’s current year findings.,

Cash Management

We have completed our analysis of the City's cash balances and are in the process of establishing
separate bank accounts for all restricted funds,

Fixed Assets

We are in the process of identifying discrepancies between reports generated by our Fixed Asset
System and amounts entered in the General Ledger. Once all items are identified they will be
reconciled and adjusting journal entries will be processed accordingly.

Compensated Ahsences

As stated in the management letter, current City administration follows established policies with
respect to paid time off.,

gJJia &C’A

Eddie Esch
interim City Manager
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